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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. The Public Works Committee is now in session. At this time, I would
like to introduce the members that are here this morning with us. We do have Member Danny Mateo; as
well as our Council Chair, Riki Hokama; and joining us this morning--although not a member of the
committee--is Councilmember Dain Kane. Member and Vice-Chair Mike Molina is excused as well as
Member Bob Carroll, another member of the committee who is also excused. This morning, our
Council Staff members are Scott Jensen as well as Pauline Martins, as well. And joining us this
morning also is the Administration Personnel, we do have Milton Arakawa of the Department of Public
Works and Environmental Management; as well as Nolly Yagin from the Public Works Department.
Also, Cindy Young, Deputy Corporation Counsel. Members, this morning, we do have two items on the
agenda: Public Works Item No. 38, pedestrian safety at the intersection of Vineyard Street and Market
Street in Wailuku; and Public Works Item No. 22, grant of a license to use County property to Hale
Mahaolu Eono Subdivision in Lahaina. At this time, members, the Chair would like to open public
testimony on either of the agenda items. For those people that are testifying and before we testify
... uh ... calling you up to testify, I would like to remind the audience as well as the members to tum
off their cell phones and pagers. This morning, testimony will be limited to three minutes. You do have
an additional one minute to conclude testimony. If you need an additional three minutes, when all of the
people have testified, you can come up and testify for an additional three minutes. When you come up
to testify, please state your name and who you are representing for the record. The first person to testify
is Jocelyn Perreira.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

MS. PERREIRA: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Council members, and Council Chair Hokama. My name is
Jocelyn Perreira. I'm the Executive Director/Program Coordinator for the Wailuku Main Street
Association, Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. Today, I am here to testify on behalf of a Wailuku
issue, which has always been of concern to the Wailuku Main Street Association, and that is to support
the request for improvements to the intersection of ... (NOTE: A loud drilling sound is coming from the
private elevator.) Should I wait?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jocelyn, can you hang on a minute?
MS. PERREIRA: Sure; no problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Perfect timing. . .. (chuckled) ...
(NOTE: Mr. Jensen left to speak with the elevator repairmen and Ms. Martins called her supervisor to see if
she could follow up with the elevator repairmen.)
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... (inaudible) ... we waited.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you. Can I have my three minutes?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Good thing we get the Public Works Director sitting right over here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Jocelyn, you can go ahead.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you so much.
(NOTE: In Mr. Jensen s absence, Ms. Martins reset the timer for Ms. Perreira s three minutes.)

MS. PERREIRA: We are here to ardently support the request for some improvements to the intersection of
Market and Vineyard Street as I had started to say. And in researching back on our capital improvement
project request over the years that we've had made to the County, we have asked for improvements in
this particular area, particularly because it's kind of common practice that people who are not familiar
with the area or if they're thinking about something else, they do come down that one-way street. And
for a long time, we felt that it was very necessary to have the blinking light or something (especially at
night) so that people know that ... they get some attention that they are coming down a one-way street,
so they know to turn. Having worked very hard on getting the Vineyard Street a two-way street--that
used to be a one-way street as you know. At that time, we did say to the County Public Works--and this
has spanned I think a couple of Administrations--that they were also going to need to focus some
attention on some traffic calming measures like a four-way stop. And in light of the fact that we are
having that beautification project on Market Street, now looking at it yet again and assessing, we think it
might even be a good idea to have a raised crosswalk because of the children that's commuting between
the Happy Valley area and going to school and coming back, I just think it adds another layer of caution
so people will know that they have to slow down while traversing that. We're really grateful to Mona
Harris for being a brave soul. We didn't want her to have any bodily harm for this to come to your
attention again, but I mean ... it clearly illustrates what needs to be done. We want to thank you for
your past support. All of you have very strongly supported improvements for Wailuku and ... uh ...
really hoped that this is one area you can act to facilitate the matter so that we can get this done in, you
know, right away, kind of fashion. Thank you for your kind attention to this request.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jocelyn. Members, any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you.
Next person to testify is Dave McLeod.
MR. MCLEOD: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Council members. Councilmember Kane, in particular,
thank you for coming down to this committee hearing. My name is Doug McLeod and I'm here today
wearing my hat as the owner of Maui Art Gallery, which is a business at the comer of Market and
Vineyard Street and by accident, I'm actually testifying before a number of people that probably have a
lot more experience and knowledge of the neighborhood than I do; but I have been down there a couple
years and I am there during the day and am witnessing a lot of near-accidents everyday. So although the
letter's from Mona Harris, I totally support what she's saying and I can tell you--based on firsthand
experience--that every single day, I am seeing tourist cars going one way (the wrong way) down Market
Street and we are also seeing--in the crosswa1ks--both the kids and the people in wheelchairs having
trouble getting across. The other day, I actually saw ... some guy was giving a guy in a wheelchair
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grief. He wouldn't let him across because he didn't think there was a crosswalk there, I guess. So one
of the things that I would just say being there everyday is that the crosswalk is actually worn away. So
whatever the long-term solution here is and I guess I don't know if that's a stoplight today, or a
four-way stop today, or what that is, but there is an immediate need to just deal with the crosswalk and I
guess just have that repainted. So anyway, I wanted to say that whatever the long-term solution is, you
know, whether again, that's an actual light or not, at this point, you definitely need that crosswalk needs
to be a short-term priority as well. So I want to thank you for letting me testify and again I am testifying
fully in support of the need for immediate improvements at the intersection of Market and Vineyard.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you,
Mr. McLeod.
MR. MCLEOD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next person to testify ... urn ... David Coennen.
MR. COENNEN: Good morning. Chairman Pontanilla, thank you for holding this hearing. Councilman Kane,
thank you for corning. My name is David Coennen. I am literally the new kid on the block. I represent
Maui Booksellers, which is also in the building on the comer of Market and Vineyard. We've been open
since April and I've been here since January. I have also witnessed many missed accidents (possible
accidents) on the comer, particularly people corning around the comer on Market turning up Vineyard. I
am particularly concerned about the kids because there are a large group of elementary school and
middle school children that go back and forth along that ... uh ... and cross that intersection, heading
to lao and Wailuku Elementary. A raised crosswalk, I would be in great support for; and possibly a
four-way stop; anything to help out the pedestrians at that intersection. I've only been there since April
but it's only a matter of time as far as I can see. I corne from Los Angeles and it always seems to be in
LA that someone needs to get injured at an intersection before anything is done, and I hope that this
hearing will at least get something possibly a temporary fix, actually getting the crosswalks
completed--as Doug McLeod testified--or repainted and then possibly a long-term solution. And I thank
you for having this hearing and the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Mr. Coennen. Members, any questions for the testifier? If
not, thank you very much. Next to testify is Mr. Rippy.
MR. RIPPY: (NOTE: A loud drilling sound is coming from the private elevator.) Aloha to all the Council
people. Hi, Riki; how you doing, Mr. Pateo [sic}; and Dain Kane, how are you? Thank you for having
this hearing. That crosswalk ... uh ... I'm John Rippy, by the way. I'm owner of Squeaky's Family
Restaurant in Wailuku. It's in the Manuel S. Molina Building and ...

-4-

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

September 12, 2005

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you hang on a minute? (NOTE: This is due to the loud drilling sound coming
from the private elevator.) Members, we'll take a brief recess, call ofthe Chair.
RECESS:

9:18 a.ID.

RECONVENE:

9:19 a.ID.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Public Works Committee is reconvened. Go ahead, Mr. Rippy. I am sorry for
that slight delay.
MR. RIPPY: Okay. Anyhow, that crosswalk has been a concern. I don't know Wailuku have grown and like
at one time, you could walk across the street but right now, there's so much traffic that it's very, very,
very dangerous to go across there. Doug McLeod brought it to my attention and then I started paying
attention and ... uh . . . like I've almost gotten hit by a car a couple of times. One day, we saw
Councilman Pontanilla cross the street and we called him over and I see he had to like dodge the traffic a
little bit himself to just get across that intersection. So just as a temporary solution, I think that a
four-way stop sign or something to slow those people down. They need to slow down when they ...
(NOTE: A loud drilling sound is coming from the private elevator.) They need to slow down when they
get to that comer because they have the right-of-way, but I guess people are going to work and they just
kind of zoom right around the comer. It's really ... I mean dangerous and then half of the sidewalk,
half of the street has lines for a crosswalk and the other half is kind of washed out. So I guess the
drivers don't know that they have to slow down but if something would just tell them "slow, 20 miles an
hour" or anything like that, I think it would be greatly appreciated by our community. I thank you very
much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Rippy. Members, any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you
very much.
MR. RIPPY: Thank you.
(NOTE: A loud drilling sound is comingfrom the private elevator.)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, I'm gonna tell the testifiers to speak a little louder. We're trying to get a
hold of the people that are doing construction work at the elevator here this morning. So when you do
come up to testify, if you can, speak a little louder. Thank you very much. The next testifier is Mona
Harris.
MS. HARRIS: Good morning. I want to thank Joe Pontanilla. Good morning to the Council members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. HARRIS: My name is Mona Harris and I have a very personal experience. I sit the gallery at Doug
McLeod's building on Mondays. And one Monday, I had ... uh ... was trying to cross the street,
coming in the direction of the gallery, and I checked very carefully the traffic and tried to work my way
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through across the crosswalk and someone coming down Vineyard Street swung to the left, and did not
see me because he was looking up Market Street in the other direction, and he nearly hit me. He
brushed my shoulder. It was a large white truck. I jumped out of the way, nearly fell, and by the time I
got in the door, I was so shaken that I had to sit down. I couldn't move for several minutes. That's not
the first time that I've nearly been hit at that intersection. People are trying to get through and so they
are not looking where they're going. They are trying to get through faster than the traffic coming from
Market Street and they're trying to, you know, crossover to the left. Also, I have seen--working at that
gallery-so many people going up the one-way street because they don't see the sign. I think that a
four-way stop at least is very necessary there and--as Rippy pointed out--perhaps signs that say
"20 miles an hour" or something because they go far faster than that. I've seen children crossing there
and I just hold my breath and hope that they get by safely. I appreciate the opportunity to share this with
you and I do hope that you can do something about this serious situation. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Again, thank you very much.
The next testifier is John Noble.
MR. NOBLE: Good morning, Council members and a special thanks to Mr. Kane for his extra work that he's
been putting into the community lately. I'm John Noble. I live and work at 160 Market Street. I've
been there since 1977 and I'm here pretty much representing all four businesses that are in my business
... uh ... in my building. And I pretty much agree with what everyone has said so far, except for the
fact that I think that we need stoplights there. Now, Jocelyn's telling me that well it's hard to get
stoplights because there's a lot of complications that has to go through but if we put up stop signs, I
think that stoplights are an absolute necessity. There's several points to that because this is a very
confusing intersection. On the Vineyard side, where the bowling alley is, you have to pull out into the
traffic (literally) because the cars that are parked in front of Gilbert's on the Market Street side block
your view of anybody that's coming from the Happy Valley way; so you actually have to pull out into
traffic. So you can't see where it's coming from, so a stop sign really isn't of any effect there. If you
have a stoplight, people know when to go. It would be my opinion too that the ... uh ... across the
Market Street side facing south, as you come up from Happy Valley, you need an entire set of at least
two lights that people can see that are maybe blinking red. It's hard to explain to people here that
haven't seen it, but I've stood in Mr. McLeod's gallery and watched at least five people in less than a
half an hour go down the wrong way on that road. It's extremely dangerous. Like they say, it's
extremely dangerous for the kids. I've had the same experiences. I've had cars brush me as I'm going
across the intersection. I think the main point here is it's so confusing, people don't know how to act
and they don't know when to go. Even if you put in some stop signs, it's still gonna have some of the
same confusing aspects, so I would ask for stoplights to be put in the future. I understand it takes some
time but it really should be a top priority because somebody's gonna get killed there. So I thank you for
your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Noble. Members, any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you
very much. The last person to sign up to testify is Glenn Au. Mr. Au?
MR. AU: Hello, ladies and gentlemen. My name is Glenn G. Au and I represent myself. My company is
Glenn G. Au and company. I'd like to be a general consultant for the travel industry. My concern is the
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health and safety of the general public as well as what everyone else said before me. As well as
handicapped safety, which is a key priority because I am handicapped--which I should be using my cane
but I just don't right now--better moveability [sic} for wheelchairs is a must for the intersection that we
are discussing on Vineyard and Market Street. Handrails, while standing for the people that are users of
canes like myself. I agree with the former speakers. I agree with them because they are, they have been
challenged as was myself. Last Thursday, we had a community meeting and I walked the whole Market
Street from Mill Street to Market and to Main Street. The whole sidewalk needs to be adjusted because
we can kick ourselves and fall because it's not evenly covered ... or shall I say handicapped proof. So I
agree with the former speakers. A blinking light to be used to warn newcomers and visitors of all the ...
of the four-way stop in the middle of town. If no one's informed them, they should be informed as they
drive. We have that down at Paukukalo Hawaiian Homes. Going over the bridge, there's a blinking
light that tells us to slow down going over the bridge. So I would think, with pedestrians involved, we
should have more blinking lights to warn us that there is a confrontation coming up with the traffic and
pedestrians. They don't make pedestrians as fast as cars anymore. And also possible, raising the
crosswalk for senior citizens and children going to school, that's a plus. Better signage to warn drivers
of pending stop and handicap with school kids. The reason why I say signage is because it's a word I
used when I was running a parking lot in Lahaina. You can't tell people anything because they're busy
traveling, so we create signs to make them aware of where the public parking's available. A lot of times,
people are traveling through Market Street going towards Main Street, not paying attention to the fact
that there is some kind of a stop coming up before them. They get instructions from people that there is
a public park in the center of town. So rather than pay attention to the so-called traffic, they are looking
for the parking, which is part of human nature.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. AU: Thank you, sir. So anyway, we need more signage. That will cost some money. Then we need
... uh ... let's see. We should consider the way we have the one-way travel lane or maybe we change
the one-way to go the opposite direction to avoid the problem of having to stop. Instead oflooking two
directions, you have one direction coming and one direction going. And you can't time yourself if
you're handicapped. You're clear on the left and you start to go, you get chased across the sidewalk like
one of the people here did Thursday night. '" (chuckled) . .. And I was standing there wondering, you
know, what's gonna happen. Who's gonna hit this person trying to go across and he's wearing slippers
so he can't run. So I had a little chuckle while standing watching the confusion going on. And the other
thing is ... may alleviate the traffic on Main Street ...
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. AU: Well, extending the one-way to Mill Street might be another possible answer. So thank you for your
time.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Au. Members, any questions for Mr. Au? Thank you very much.
Are there any other members of the public that would like to testify now that hasn't testified yet? If not,
members, we did receive a written testimony from Ululani Correa. I think it's in your handout. At this
time, Chair would like to close public testimony ifthere's no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.

PW-38

PEDESTRIAN SAFETY AT THE INTERSECTION OF VINEYARD STREET AND
MARKET STREET (WAILUKU) (C.c. No. 05-280}

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the first item on our agenda is Public Works Item No. 38, pedestrian safety
at the intersection of Vineyard Street and Market Street in Wailuku. This is a result of County
Communication No. 05-280, transmitting a letter from Mona Harris regarding the safety of persons
crossing the street at the intersection of Vineyard and Market Streets in Wailuku. At this time, I would
like to call on the director to provide us with some comments.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item pertains to a request from Ms. Mona Harris, expressing
concern about the safety of pedestrians crossing at the Vineyard and Market Street intersection in
Wailuku. As you know, the Market Street approach from the Maalaea side of the intersection is one
way toward that intersection and this is a through movement with no stop sign presently. The Market
Street approach from the Happy Valley side (the opposite side) supports two-way traffic and there's also
no stop sign condition for traffic coming from Happy Valley. Both of the Vineyard Street approaches,
from the lao Valley side and from the Kahului side, support two-way traffic and both of these
approaches have a stop sign on the approach to the intersection. To address the concern that had been
raised, we would like to propose implementing a four-way stop at this intersection as a temporary traffic
control measure. Section 10.28.130 of the Code allows the Public Works Director to administratively
authorize any approved traffic control device on a County highway for a period of eight weeks or less.
During this period, the Code requires the department to monitor the traffic control device and submit a
report to the Council for further action. Prior to the installation of a four-way stop, we would propose to
collect traffic data to establish the existing condition. Then we would install the four-way stop, monitor
its operation, and then write a report back to the Council recommending a permanent solution. If the
committee agrees with this course of action, then we would request that the committee defer the item.
And of course, if there are any questions regarding this item, we would be happy to try to answer them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any questions for the Director? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much and good morning. Good morning, Milton.
MR. ARAKAWA: Good morning.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Your proposal. This was also ... have you had the opportunity to also discuss
this with the Police Department?
MR. ARAKAWA: No. We haven't discussed it with the Police Department, yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The fact that there is a police substation virtually right here in this same area
... urn ... since you didn't have any dialogue with them, your request for the four-way stop, this is in
direct response to the inquiry but ... uh ... I'm just concerned about the additional traffic, especially in
the morning hours. The morning hours coming up from Happy Valley and the intersection right by Mill
Street, where it's overly congested already and what will happen with the four-way stop when there is a
lot of confusion as to who turns when and the like. I guess what I'm trying to say is that there's a police
substation right there and perhaps being able to get the police officers out during peak hours or peak
need times that might alleviate some of the stresses because their presence need to be ... uh ... to be
real visible there. I don't know. I don't know how a the four-way stop will work at this particular
intersection because of the additional congested areas in close proximity to this site. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo. We are also somewhat concerned also about the traffic flow as well
and that's the reason why we're going to be proposing to collect the data to see how it's gonna affect the
traffic flow. And of course, the proof of the pudding, basically, will come in after the four-way stop is
implemented and we can actually see how it would affect the rush-hour traffic. So it would be for a trial
period of eight weeks. We will then see how it works and then report back to the Council as to a
recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And Mr. Arakawa, long-range planning for this particular area in
terms of traffic ... urn ... is there a plan? Is there any kind of a ... uh ... I guess, traffic-flow plan that
the department is currently looking at in addressing the continued increased demands of this particular
congested site?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAWA: In terms of any long-term plans, as you know, we have our Market Street Development
Project, which we've been working on. We are hopeful that we can start construction on that project
perhaps the second quarter of next year. It will involve the existing project improvements .
. . . (end a/tape, start IB @ 9:37 a.m.). " The proposal at this point in time for that project would be to
retain the existing stop conditions. If we are permitted to go ahead with this temporary control measure,
those plans may change depending on the outcome of the study. But basically, we would need to get
additional data to come up with a recommendation to the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kane?
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, I'll yield to the committee members prior to asking any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Hokama, no questions? Mr. Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just have a few questions and it's just by way of
background from what was provided for in testimony to the Director. There seems to be three areas that
were brought forward. First, the immediate issue seems to be the faded crosswalk, which I think can be
an immediate issue that the department could resolve. Can you give us the status on what you folks can
do to respond to that faded crosswalk and getting that corrected?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as the faded line markings, we can do that. I can put in a work request and have that
done in fairly short order.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. The second item that was brought forward was for short-term,
testifiers brought forward some points regarding: a. raised crosswalk a, perhaps a component that could
be considered in the improvement of the area; and b. what you've talked about as far as a four-way stop.
Can you share with us--and I think you've touched on it with your response to Mr. Mateo regarding the
Market Street Development Project. Within the Market Street Development Project relative to this
intersection, does it have any discussion within that project scope that talks about any improvements to
this . . . besides the traffic flow, which is the stop signs for the east/west flow and then the continued
open flow of the north/south direction? Any ... any additional things that are discussed regarding
improvements to this area?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa?
MR. YAGIN: Councilmember Kane. For the Market Street Improvement Project, they intend to maintain the
traffic flow (the existing traffic flow) in addition to things like a textured intersection. They'll pave it
with a ... uh ... it's still, it's a concrete (a textured concrete) to call attention to this intersection. In
addition to that, also, we would improve the type of signage, increasing some of the signage, making
more aware of the one-way condition on that segment of Market Street and there are also ... urn ...
curb ramp improvements also.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The other thing would be ... urn ... that was mentioned and I neglected to
mention ... uh . . . some sort of flashing light indicator or some sort of warning indicator for the
approach to this intersection. Has there been any consideration to that? And if not, is that something
that the department is willing and/or able to accommodate as far as the request for improvements in this
area?
MR. YAGIN: As far as this project, there is no flashing beacons proposed for it but it's certainly something that
we can look into.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. And finally, long-term, I think the response has been given to us that a
recommendation from you (Mr. Director) once we have your report from the ... uh ... based on
10.28.130, the temporary traffic control device, the four-way stop, and that's where we would be able to
look at whether or not we could consider ... urn ... but I think Mr. Noble brought forward as far as a
stoplight in that area.
MR. YAGIN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. One final note, Mr. Chair. No. I think ... I think we're good there.
Mr. Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I do have some questions. In regards to your study, how soon can we get
this temporary four-way stop going? How long will it take for us guys to implement something?
MR. YAGIN: Chair Pontanilla. We've made some requests to our traffic data collection consultant to collect
some data from the intersection prior to doing any type of test and ... urn ... to get their data would
approximately take three weeks or so. And another thing that we do like to do when we do change the
traffic control is to put out some temporary beacons to warn of the condition and we don't have any
flashing beacons in stock right now. We do have to order them ... and the last order that we took took
about a month, so we're looking roughly at about a month-and-a-half to two months.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can we speed up that process?
MR. YAGIN: Yeah. We can try to search out other vendors, it's just that the one that did ... urn ... rush on
providing us with the beacons took about just a little over a month. We could actually consider
borrowing some beacons that we already have installed elsewhere.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. If borrowing is the fastest way that we can provide some kind of caution at this
intersection, I would like to go with that; and at the same time, if you could speed up with the so-called
vendors to provide us with some of those flashing lights. The other thing that was brought up is in
regards to when you come up on Vineyard (at Gilbert's store) when you look at the right, there seems to
be some visibility problems. In the Market Street improvements, are we taking away any parking stalls
to improve the visibility, looking right towards Happy Valley?
MR. Y AGIN: ... (NOTE: A loud drilling sound is coming from the private elevator.) Yes. As part of that
lower ... uh ... that Market Street Improvement Project, where we are intending to take out about one
stall fronting Gilbert's to assist with the sight distance.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What was that again? Can you speak up a little louder?
MR. YAGIN: We're ... with this Market Street Improvement Project, we're intending to take away one stall
fronting Gilbert's and that's to help with the sight distance concerns.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
intersection from Happy Valley?

What

IS

the speed limit on Market Street, commg towards that

MR. YAGIN: 20 miles per hour.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty? What would be the possibility of reducing that speed limit because of the
number of children that crosses that one particular intersection going towards lao School or Wailuku
Elementary?
MR. YAGIN: It's ... it's always a possibility. We can establish that more when we collect the data.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the department? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Thank you very much. The data that you're waiting for
that we'll be getting in the next three weeks. Can you tell me what is gonna be included in that data
collection? And I'm asking only because I hope it's not something that we already know.
MR. YAGIN: The data that we do request picks up things like vehicle classification, 24-hour counts, and
directional speed.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And with the data will come a recommendation ... or strictly just a data
collection?
MR. Y AGIN: For this, just strictly data collection.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And once you get it, it will take ... once you get that information (the
data that's been collected by the consultant) what happens with it?
MR. YAGIN: What we will do with that data is hold onto it, basically, to compare with the, I guess, with the
... after the temporary test to compare with data collected during that period.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: During the eight weeks that you will be ... uh ... the recommendation is for
the four-way stop, your information is added to the information that's already been compiled? Or what
happens to your data collection in the eight weeks?
MR. Y AGIN: Yes. We will be asking the consultant to collect again and it will be all compiled into one report
and compared and a recommendation will be provided.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions? Member Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Would it be possible to look at options that would include reversing the
flow? You would change Church Street to the opposite direction and make Market just go to Main
Street, connect Market, which would be reversing the flow. You would reroute traffic flow.
MR. YAGIN: Things like reversing the flow of traffic around this area is ... urn ... as always, it's something
that can be considered but it would probably need to be studied somehow, maybe in a larger scale study
of the area.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well we are aware that, you know, we are continuously looking at
our municipal parking project because I think maybe you need to look at eliminating either one side or
both sides of Market Street parking once we get our new structure going. Okay, I'm done. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, just as a follow up. I guess Mr. Kane earlier was referencing some
of the requests or information provided by the various testifiers and one of the items that perhaps I
would just like to add to that list was the consideration of the department for the raised crosswalks in the
area. And that's just it, a recommendation for consideration. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Anymore questions, members? Mr. Arakawa. As far as the re-striping,
how soon can we get that thing done in regards to the re-striping of the crosswalks?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman. We can put in the request. The actual people that do the work would be our
Highways Division, not ... uh ... it would be a different division than Mr. Yagin is in but ... urn ... I
can see if we can try to expedite it. Hopefully, it will be within a month, I would guess at this point.
They do have a backlog of already striping requests that they have but I'll try to see if we can get it
done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Anymore questions, members? At this time, the Chair would like to
request that the department, you know, at its best to go ahead and start monitoring the intersection so
that we can get some safety issues completed within a short time. And if Mr. Arakawa's Transportation
Department can do the re-striping, at least that would alleviate and provide some visibility to people
that's driving at that intersection that we do have a crosswalk in that area. With that, members, the Chair
would like to defer this matter until Mr. Arakawa has completed his evaluation of that intersection and
hopefully soon that a temporary four-way stop can go into that one partiCUlar area. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. This matter has been deferred.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT: HOKAMA, MATEO, AND
PONTANILLA)
ACTION:

DEFER.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, brief recess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Briefrecess at the call of the Chair. Let's come back at 10 o'clock.
RECESS:

9:50 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:01 a.m.... (end o!tape, start 2A) . ..

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Public Works Committee is reconvened. Thank you for that recess.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.

PW-22

GRANT OF A LICENSE TO USE COUNTY PROPERTY TO HALE MAHAOLU EONO
SUBDIVISION (LAHAINA) (C.c. No. 04-69)

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Members, our second item on the agenda is Public Works Committee
Item No. 22, grant of a license to use county property to Hale Mahaolu Eono Subdivision in Lahaina.
This is a result of County Communication No. 04-69 from the Public Works Director transmitting the
following proposed--excuse me--we get one proposed resolution? Thank you. On March 19,2004,
Hale Mahaolu Eono was granted a license for the encroaching wall. Today's discussion will focus on
the status of the license and a possible disposition of the identified parcel. This morning, we do have
Mr. Arakawa as well as Corporation Counsel Cindy Young. Also available will be Hale Mahaolu's
Director, Mr. Roy Katsuda. So at this time, I would like to have the Public Works Director provide some
opening comments.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This item, as you mentioned, is a carryover from the Council's
previous term. Briefly, by way of background, Hale Mahaolu Eono is a senior housing project located at
the comer of Lahainaluna Road and Kelawea Street. After road widening lots along their Lahainaluna
Road and Kelawea Street, frontages were dedicated to the County and construction was started on the
project. However, small slivers of portions of a retaining wall constructed by Hale Mahaolu's contractor
were inadvertently built within County property. The last action of the Council occurred at the full
Council meeting of May 16, 2005. The Council passed Resolution No. 05-76, which authorized an
amendment to a grant of license of real property to Hale Mahaolu Eono. This basically authorized the
extension of the license agreement for the wall encroachment to September 30, 2005. The Council also
passed Resolution No. 05-77, authorizing the disposal of real property to Hale Mahaolu Eono by
negotiation. The areas of land involved are found in the attachments to this resolution and there are
three licensed areas on which the wall encroachments occur. These are license area one, consisting of
9 square feet; license area five, consisting of 87 square feet; and license area six, consisting of 4 square
feet. These wall encroachments total 100 square feet. In addition, there are remainder areas one and
two. These remainder areas are minor portions of the road widening lot needed to maintain a straight
right-of-way line along Lahainaluna Road. Remainder area one contains 10 square feet and remainder
area two contains 8 square feet. The remainder areas total 18 square feet; and thus, the total amount of
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land pertaining to Resolution No. 05-77 is 118 square feet. An appraisal of the noted properties was
contracted by the County. This was done by Paradise Appraisals. The value determined by the
appraiser was $12.40 per square foot. So for the subject 118 square feet, the total value determined by
the appraisers is $1,463. I should note for the committee's information that the costs (the actual costs to
perform the appraisal) was $2,604.15. An issue related to the sale of this County property is the public
notice. The Code requires public notice published in the newspaper of general circulation in the County
once in each of three successive weeks. Proposals are accepted up until 30 days after the last
publication of the notice. In this case, however, the proposed sale of property involves small slivers of
property which could only be purchased and used by the abutting owners, which in this case are either
Hale Mahaolu Eono or the County of Maui. Thus, although publication to the general public is being
done on September 11 th, 18 th, and the 25 th , the only entities which could purchase the property are Hale
Mahaolu Eono and the County. The resolution of the wall encroachment issue has been affecting Hale
Mahaolu's ability to effect final closing for the project and could jeopardize Federal funding from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. We believe that a resolution of this issue is important
to allow a noteworthy project to move foreword. Therefore, we would recommend that the following
steps occur. First, since there will be insufficient time to complete the publication process by
September 30, 2005, we suggest that the Public Works Committee file this particular item. Second, we
have transmitted resolutions for consideration at the full Council meeting of September 16,2005 (this
Friday). There are a resolution, which authorizes the sale of 118 square feet of County property to Hale
Mahaolu Eono, and a second resolution, authorizing an amendment to the license agreement to
October 31, 2005. Because of the time constraints relating to Federal funding, the request is being made
to adopt these resolutions on the floor of the Council this Friday. This would allow Hale Mahaolu the
greatest opportunity to retain its Federal funding for the project. Today at the committee meeting, as the
Chair mentioned, Deputy Corp. Counsel Cindy Young, representatives of Hale Mahaolu (Mf. Roy
Katsuda and Ms. Robyne Nishida Nakao), and myself are available to answer any questions. And
of course, our County surveyor, Allen Watanabe, is also in the audience available to answer any
questions as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any questions for either Corporation Counselor
Mr. Arakawa in regards to what is being proposed this morning, and any questions that you may have?
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman. Do we have a sale agreement or a sale amount that's been
negotiated and agreed to?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa or Ms. Young?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What I'm trying to avoid, Chairman, is--you know how I feel about doing
committee work at Council meetings?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly. Understood.
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MS. YOUNG: The appraisal came back for the 118 square feet as $1,463. So that's the amount that Hale
Mahaolu is proposing to purchase the property. We are anticipating that although this is being done to
satisfy a very technical Code provision--the way that Finance Department has drafted the written criteria
as required by 3.44.050 of the Maui County Code--that the way it's drafted as far as requiring the
purchaser to be an abutting landowner, we don't anticipate that anyone else is going to qualify. I believe
they also have to show some kind of need for the property. So we don't anticipate that anyone else is
gonna qualify. This is purely being done to satisfy a very technical Code requirement that cannot be
waived. Having said that, then should this sale go forward as anticipated, the sale price would be the
$1,463. Hale Mahaolu has also agreed to pay whatever costs the County has incurred as related to this
transaction. So for example, the appraisal (which is roughly $2,600), as well as the public hearing--I'm
sorry--public notice costs, so the newspaper costs (which is roughly $500), so all of those costs would be
incurred ... have been agreed to by Hale Mahaolu Eono.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAWA: I have nothing further to add, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm very sorry. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Another question please for Corporation Counsel, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Arakawa ... urn ... Mr. Hokama.... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Gee, if I could get a director's pay, Chairman, I would be happy to
acknowledge that designation. . .. (chuckled) ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But thank you, anyway. Counselor, it is still my understanding that there's
parts of the Code that if the Council finds disposition of County property for some kind of public health,
welfare, or a proven public benefit, that we wouldn't need to go through this process? Is there not
something in the Code that allows us to bypass certain procedures because of the public good the
Council finds?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Young?
MS. YOUNG: In looking at Section 3.44.020 of the Maui County Code, Subsection A provides that "Except as
otherwise provided by law and subject to other provisions of this chapter, the County council may, by
resolution, approved by a majority of its members, dispose of real property in fee simple or easements."
However, we look at that language subject to other provisions of this chapter, meaning that ifproperty is
sold by negotiation, then it should comply with the requirements of Section 3.44.050.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Which is, please?
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MS. YOUNG: Oh, I'm sorry. Which is the section in the Code that pertains to selling, the sale of County real
property done by negotiation, and it sets forth a process and procedure and whatnot for sale of County
real property by negotiation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. This request would not fit under those parameters, counselor?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Young?
MS. YOUNG: It does fit within 3.44.050. The only remaining thing is the notice, which is required under
Subsection B.I. So once that notice is done--and what it requires is the three weeks of notice and then
the thirty days (at least thirty days) for which the public is able to have a proposal to purchase the
property, to submit a proposal to purchase the property from the County. Once that runs out, then
Section 3.44.050 would be met.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I got two more questions, Chair, but I am happy to give Mr. Mateo
his opportunity.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I guess my--and you can stop me at anytime
if it's not ... if I'm going outside of the scope--but how is it that it's Hale Mahaolu, who is responsible
for the payment when it was the contractor's error?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Young or Mr. Arakawa?
MS. YOUNG: Thank you. This is done by negotiation, so this is something within the Finance Director's
authority, to negotiate the terms of this sale. It's my understanding that through those negotiations, Hale
Mahaolu did volunteer to pay for those costs that were associated with that and they can probably
explain more as to that relationship with the contractor and how that might be affected and whatnot.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Then to, I guess, Public Works then. I think in prior meetings the
discussion did identify the human error component and why this situation occurred. And as the
contractor, he would be insured to cover such instances. So which, I'm just kind of concerned because
like you know, it seems like Hale Mahaolu, who don't have the kind of, you know, they don't have this
kind of money to just come up and pay somebody else's error, so that was my only concern, Chairman.
Can you ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How about that information from--Member Mateo, do you need any more information
from Mr. Katsuda in regards to the question that you asked?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: If the Director, Mr. Chair, can respond and then perhaps Mr. Katsuda could.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa, first.
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo. Actually, I was hoping I could just refer this question to the
applicant (Hale Mahaolu) and he can kind of go over the background as to what had occurred between
them and their contractor.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
MR. ARAKAWA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Katsuda, I guess you heard the question?
MR. KATSUDA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And if you can go ahead and provide us with some comments.
MR. KATSUDA: Okay. At the moment, Hale Mahaolu has about $90,000 in retention that we're still holding
against Metcalf Construction company. Until this matter is settled, they will not receive the remainder.
We have not had much success in communicating this particular difficulty with the encroachment with
Metcalf Construction company and HUD has authorized us to retain whatever it is to settle this issue.
So the amounts in question would ultimately be paid for out of this retention.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. I'm satisfied.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Thank you very much, Mr. Katsuda.
MR. KATSUDA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anymore questions, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, I'm done.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Just two more questions, please Chairman, as it
regards to this request. It appears this request is being treated differently how we've done
encroachments in the past. So does that mean that all those past actions by the County would be
invalidated?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Young?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I mean we've dealt with a lot of private property owners that have, you
know, boundary property wall and overhangs. Does this have a bigger impact to the County that we are
not being aware of?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Young?
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Without knowing the circumstances of those past transactions, I really
can't comment as to its compliance or noncompliance with the Code. Here this issue has been brought
to our attention and there needs to be compliance with the section that deals with negotiation and
unfortunately, that requires this notice, which is ... affects the timing of this transaction. And it's
unfortunate also because in this particular situation as with perhaps others, which may be the reason they
occurred that way is that this is really a technicality, where no one else would qualify, therefore, there
would not likely be an appeal process which we would note that there is an appeal process established in
the negotiation section. We don't anticipate that any of those will be necessary in this situation. We
don't anticipate somebody will request to purchase the property and we don't anticipate that there will
be an appeal; but unfortunately, the Code is very strict as it is currently worded.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Last question, Chairman. Well maybe it's more of a statement, Chairman.
My concern is that while with regards to this request, we've been dealing with this a long time. We've
been told this is what Council needs ... this committee needs to recommend to Council. We've taken
actions. It's still in your committee's agenda, Chairman. Department's reviewed it and we've been
given their best advice. We followed through. Our own staff doesn't bring it up to us, you know, so we
process and we're still processing. Is this gonna be the final with this request? Are we gonna be able to
close this agenda item, counselor?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Young?
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes. Well as far as the sale is concerned, once the notice
requirement is fulfilled, you know, we can go ahead and ... assuming that Council passes the resolution
authorizing sale, we don't see any reason why the purchase couldn't be done ... or rather the sale of
County real property could not be finalized by the end of October. That's well within the time
constraints.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Any further requirements of the Council ... once the resolution? Do
we need to give final action on the amount?
MS. YOUNG: You'll be getting a resolution that's ... urn ... does set forth the general terms of this sale to
Hale Mahaolu and that will be, that is what Director Arakawa is talking about when he's requesting the
action be taken on the floor this Friday. There will be a resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that is the final requirement that Council needs to deal with?
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MS. YOUNG: Yes. I think part of the reason why there are two resolutions is because, by Code, there is an
appeals process within the Council. So that does, in certain circumstances, create an awkward situation
if there is an appeal because if Council by one resolution disposes of County real property by
negotiation pursuant to 3.44.050 to a particular entity and somebody provides (after the public notice)
provides a proposal to purchase the property, they would have to corne before you to appeal that; and
typically, appeals bodies need to have that showing of unbiased and fairness. So I think that is why this
has been done in the past ... because appeals would go to you. Appeals would go to the Council. So in
the ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Friday's proposed action would close that opportunity ... by the Director's
recommendation this morning to the committee? We are making a decision prior to the deadline?
MS. YOUNG: Yes. In this particular situation, this is a very narrow situation where no one else would qualify.
So technically, yes, they could still appeal and technically, yes, Council would need to hear that appeal;
but we don't anticipate--in this particular situation--that somebody would be successful in that appeal
because of the way that the criteria is drafted and the Finance Director does have pretty broad discretion
as far as drafting the criteria.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So we wouldn't end up in court then? Or is there always a possibility we
would be taken to court because we've made a decision prior to deadline?
MS. YOUNG: This, the way ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: There's nothing that prohibits us from making the decision prior to the
deadline?
MS. YOUNG: That's correct. So the way that the resolution is drafted, Council wouldn't be precluded from
passing that resolution prior to the notice criteria being run, the notice ... urn ... being done.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And Friday, we will hear the same thing from your department at the
Council meeting regarding the position of your department?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Young?
MS. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Mr. Hokama. Anymore questions, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama, your point--as far as, you know, why it took us so long in the number of
departments that had some responsibility in regards to this matter--is well taken. I would like to say that
future sales like that that requires the Councilor the committee to ... uh ... or Corporation Counsel as
well as Public Works and even Finance to put in these adds in regards to property sale would be highly
taken. I think, for me, you know, it was just plain oversight and I thank you for that reminder.
Members, if there's any questions, anymore questions? At this time, the Chair will call a brief recess.

RECESS:

10:27 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:28 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Public Works Committee is reconvened again. At this time, the Chair would like to
recommend that we file County Communication No. 04-69, if there's no objections.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT:
PONT ANILLA)
ACTION:

HOKAMA, MATEO, AND

FILE COMMUNICATION.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any further discussion or any announcements?
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Scott, anything?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, just so that the record is clear, I would prefer we do the motion-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --because there's only three of us and I want the record clear.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. The motion is to file County Communication No. 04-69.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. All in favor, say "aye".
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama and Mateo, and Chair Pontanilla.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Vice-Chair Molina

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FILE COMMUNICATION.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Three "ayes". Member Molina as well as Member Carroll absent,
excused. So if there's no more business to be handled and no announcement, I would like to adjourn
this meeting. Thank you very much, members. Meeting adjourned.
ADJOURN: 10:29 a.m.

APPROVED BY:

A, Chair
Public Works Committee
Transcribed by: Pauline Martins

pw:min:050912
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